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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£12.4 MILLION
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Our Vision
is to be a major, commercially
successful and sustainable
Trust Port, integral to the
North East of Scotland’s
transport infrastructure
and providing an increasingly
significant contribution
to its economic growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

and increasingly larger vessels continues to

“

“

“

The combination of consistently high activity
contribute to the capacity challenges facing
the port, and makes the need for physical
expansion all the more vital.

02

I AM VERY PLEASED TO BE MAKING MY FIRST ANNUAL REVIEW STATEMENT
AS CHAIRMAN OF ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD AND IN BEING ABLE TO REPORT
ANOTHER OUTSTANDING YEAR OF ACTIVITY FOR THE PORT, WITH SHIPPING
EXCEEDING 28 MILLION TONNES FOR A THIRD YEAR IN SUCCESSION.
Indeed, 2014 was a year of high activity across

tonnes of shipping. International trade also

A special thank you goes to Chris Lloyd,

all sectors, with similar levels of activity to that

increased by 12% compared with 2013,

who stood down at the end of 2014 after six

in 2013. Vessel arrivals increased by 1.3% and

partly due to scrap materials shipments

years on the Board and four as Chairman.

shipping tonnage was almost identical compared

increasing by 27% and bulk barley exports

Chris’s contribution has been highly significant

with a year earlier. Total cargo tonnage remained

increasing by a remarkable 288%.

and the Board is very grateful to Chris for his

high, topping 4.75 million tonnes.

leadership and guidance during his tenure.

Continued high activity levels have also

Aberdeen Harbour’s activity levels not only

resulted in sustained commercial success.

Most importantly, I would like to express my

reflect sustained demand but, given the

Turnover increased in 2014, to £28.9million

appreciation to our many stakeholders for their

amount of business that is turned away each

from £27.7million in 2013, and pre-tax profits

continued support. I hope that the introduction

year, indicate that the port has been operating

increased to £12.4million, compared with

of our Community Action Fund in 2014, which

at, or near, capacity for some time and that

£9.6million in 2013.

distributed over £100,000 to 18 different local

we have reached a plateau in terms of activity
possible within the existing harbour’s
physical constraints.

charities and community groups, goes some

As per our Trust Port status, all resulting

way to repaying that support.

surpluses are reinvested into the operation,
maintenance and improvement of the port –

A key stakeholder group is, however,

A similar story can be found if we focus on oil

with an obvious current focus on accumulating

our customers and, during a year that provided

and gas activity. Despite the current economic

reserves to fund the potential Nigg Bay Project.

them with many challenges, we would like to

climate, 5,601 oil and gas related vessels
entered the Harbour in 2014 and this number
has varied by no more than 600 per year for the
last ten years. This remarkably constant level of
demand, however, belies the fact that vessels
have considerably increased in size, and the
same period shows a 45% increase in annual
vessel tonnage handled.
This trend in ever-increasing vessel sizes is
particularly true of the subsea, inspection, repair,
maintenance and decommissioning activity,
and the combination of consistently high activity
and increasingly larger vessels, continues to
contribute to the capacity challenges facing the
port, and makes the need for physical expansion
all the more vital.
It is not just oil and gas activity, however,
that has remained high. 2,246 general cargo
vessels arrived in 2014, an increase of 14%
on 2013, and equating to almost 9.4 million

thank them for their vision in backing our

A successful organisation, however, does not

proposed plans for Nigg Bay. The Board is

happen by chance, and I would like to thank
the Aberdeen Harbour Board staff for all of their
hard work and dedication.

fully committed to providing harbour facilities
that are second to none in the North East of
Scotland and which will anchor existing and

A very special thank you goes to Ian Jessiman
and Eddie Aitken who both retired after
35 years’ service and John Simpson who

future business in the region. We believe that
this will provide increased opportunity for all.
ALISTAIR MACKENZIE

retired after 17 years’ service. I also would

Chairman, 30 March 2015

like to congratulate those who received
long-service awards during 2014. Worthy of
mention too are Dave Gregor and Dianne
Bruce, who have completed 35 and 30 years
of service respectively.
I would also like to thank my fellow
non-executive members of the Board,
to congratulate Howard Woodcock on his
appointment as Vice Chairman, and to welcome
Mike Porter to the Board and Matt North to
the Executive as Commercial Director.
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THE OLD ADAGE THAT TIME FLIES WHEN YOU ARE BUSY CAN PERHAPS
EXPLAIN THE SPEED WITH WHICH THE LAST TWELVE MONTHS HAVE FLOWN BY.
THIS IS UNDOUBTEDLY TESTAMENT TO THE HIVE OF ACTIVITY THAT HAS BEEN
ABERDEEN HARBOUR DURING THIS PERIOD.
As our Chairman has described, 2014 proved to

North East of Scotland, and to potentially lose

Other elements of the feasibility study have

be a very successful year for both vessel and

it to ports in Norway or the North of England,

also progressed hugely in the last 12 months.

cargo tonnages, and I can also add that activity

would represent a major loss to the local,

We are nearing completion of one of the most

in 2015 shows no signs of abating. Quarter one

regional and national economies.

widely-scoped Environmental Impact

activity for 2015 is 4% ahead of the same period
last year in terms of vessel arrivals and 5% up in
terms of shipping tonnage. Interestingly, the oil
and gas element of this activity has remained
buoyant throughout.
Aberdeen Harbour’s activity levels not only
reflect sustained demand, but given the number
and type of berthing requests that we are unable
to provide, indicate that the port has been
unable to meet demand, both in terms of
volume, and the growing requirement for longer
deepwater berthage, born out of the trend
for ever increasing vessel sizes.

At a local level, it is estimated that the economic
differential between expansion and maintaining
the status quo could amount to as much as

Assessments (EIA) to take place in the region
for many years, and we are on the brink of a
major wave-modelling programme.

£0.9billion per annum by 2034, and equate to

We have also been further consolidating our

a loss of 7,000 jobs.

business case for the project and, during 2014,

It is not just decommissioning, however,
which forms the basis of identifiable future
demand. As the UKCS fields continue to mature,
the inspection, repair and maintenance regimes
required to maintain basic production operations

we received European Commission funding
towards the EIA and wave-modelling
programmes, along with additional support
from Scottish Enterprise. Further EU funding
has recently been applied for.

are ever increasing, and the port would also

Throughout all of this, a major consultation

welcome the ability to widen its portfolio of

programme has been underway with our

activity, such as an increased range of

stakeholders, including customers, local

I have been asked recently what effect the

commercial operations, larger cruise ships,

residents, politicians and industry groups,

current oil price has had on our expansion

and the ability to seize future opportunities

and this engagement programme is set to

plans but, even if the most pessimistic of

created in the renewables energy sector.

continue. I would like to personally thank our

predictions are accurate, and we experience a
sustained lower price, the likely effect of this
would be that demand for deepwater berthing,
close to the existing oil and gas supply chain,
would increase rather than decline.

The design and scale of the Nigg Bay plans
are impressive. The facility would provide an

stakeholders, in particular our customers for
their support in this.

additional 1,700 metres of quayside, all with

They have our assurance that we continue to

a minimum depth of nine metres. Although this

pursue potential improvement opportunities

represents a 28% increase on the amount of

for facilities and services in the existing port,

Any sustained decrease in exploration and

berthage currently provided, it represents a

whilst doing all that we can to ensure the Nigg

production caused by the current drop in crude

120% increase in deepwater berthage,

Bay expansion project is viable; a major

oil prices, could have the probable outcome of

the demand for which I have highlighted.

development which could prove to be one of the

bringing the decommissioning phase of the
UKCS upon us even faster, thereby increasing
the need for facilities in Aberdeen that can
accommodate the kind of marine activity that
this industry will generate.

The project also provides us with the opportunity

most significant in the port’s 900-year history.

to create one of the most sustainable, low-carbon,

COLIN PARKER

port facilities in the country, potentially exploiting

Chief Executive, 30 March 2015

ground heat-source energy, tidal energy, and the
ability to accommodate ship-to-shore or offshore

For Aberdeen not to seize the comparatively

renewable-created energy conduits within the

short window of opportunity to anchor a large

quayside superstructure.

proportion of this £30billion business in the
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CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S
REPORT

“

“

The design and scale of the Nigg Bay plans
are impressive. The facility would provide an
additional 1700 metres of quayside, all with
a minimum depth of 9 metres.
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What makes a Trust Port?
A Trust Port is an independent statutory body, created by an Act of Parliament. As such,
it is not controlled by a local authority, nor is it a private business. Instead, it is run by an independent
board, for the benefit of its stakeholders, and governed by its own local legislation.
The duty of Trust Board members and staff
is to ‘hand it [the port] on in the same or better
condition to succeeding generations. This
remains the ultimate responsibility of the board,
and future generations remain the ultimate
stakeholder’.* In other words, it is the role of
the Board members, and those working for
the organisation, to safeguard and improve the
port so that it continues to flourish.
A Trust Port differs from a privately owned port in
that it has no shareholders who require a dividend,
instead all ‘profit’ or surpluses made from Trust
Port operations are reinvested into the operation,
maintenance and administration of the port.
There are approximately 100 Trust Ports in the
UK, and Trust Port status has proven to be

a highly successful model for Aberdeen, since
becoming a trust in 1961. It allows the Harbour
to operate in a commercial environment with no
direct public funding, but also enables it to
compete in the open market with private and
local authority-owned facilities.
Continuous Improvement
A long-term view is at the heart of everything
we do at Aberdeen Harbour. We are committed
to constantly improving and modernising harbour
assets, services and infrastructure for the benefit
of all our stakeholders. Major infrastructure
projects can be undertaken with greater
confidence and often with greater clarity than
in other areas of the private sector. A Trust
Port is also free from shareholder pressure

and, traditionally, Aberdeen Harbour has
refrained from increasing harbour rates above
inflation unless it has had a specific harbourrelated improvement reason for doing so.
Stakeholders
There are many, many stakeholders of a Trust
Port, playing an intrinsic role in operational
matters and also shaping how the port is
perceived in the local community. Stakeholders
have a crucial role to play in driving Aberdeen
Harbour forward. By working together, the Board
and stakeholders can deliver a vibrant,
prosperous port that will provide a bright and
secure future for many generations to come.
*(Modern Trust Ports for Scotland – a guide to good governance).

STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT
Fundamental to the role of a Trust Port is
engagement with its stakeholders.
Aberdeen Harbour takes advantage of many
forms of communication to ensure its
relationship with stakeholders is a productive
and proactive one.
These include:
➣
➣
➣
➣
➣
➣
➣
➣

ALL ‘PROFIT’ OR SURPLUSES MADE
FROM TRUST PORT OPERATIONS ARE
REINVESTED INTO THE OPERATION,
MAINTENANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
OF THE PORT

A TRUST PORT’S STAKEHOLDERS CONSTITUTE A WIDE AUDIENCE,
INCLUDING EMPLOYEES; LOCAL RESIDENTS; COMMUNITIES;
PORT USERS (INCLUDING FERRY PASSENGERS); CUSTOMERS;
LOCAL AND NATIONAL GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVES;
BUSINESS COMMUNITIES; STATUTORY AUTHORITIES;
LOCAL INTEREST GROUPS AND ENVIRONMENTAL BODIES.
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Annual Public Meeting (May)
Stakeholder Christmas Lunch (December)
Annual Review (Published in May)
Website News and Community Pages
News Articles in Local and National Media
Industry Publications
Community Publications
Attending Community Council Meetings

OVER

100

TRUST PORTS
IN UK

BECAME A
MODERN
TRUST PORT IN

1961

KEY OBJECTIVES
PRINCIPAL
MARINE SUPPORT
CENTRE FOR OIL
AND GAS AND
RENEWABLES

MAIN
COMMERCIAL
PORT
FOR NORTH
EAST SCOTLAND

PRINCIPAL
MAINLAND PORT
FOR LIFELINE
NORTH ISLES
FERRY SERVICES

ENHANCE
RELATIONSHIP
WITH
STAKEHOLDERS

CONTINUOUS
ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENT
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OUR BOARD
BOARD CONSTITUTION

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Aberdeen Harbour Board is an independent statutory authority formed under the terms of
the Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1960. It is responsible for the administration,
maintenance and improvement of the port. The Board is comprised of nine non-executive
members and two senior officials, appointed by the Board, and the Chief Executive.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman
and two non-executive Board members. Its principal duties are to consider matters relating
to staff wages and salaries. The Committee also considers in detail items or issues delegated
or remitted by the Board and reports back with recommendations or details of actions taken.

BOARD APPOINTMENT PROCESS

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Appointments of non-executive Board members are based on equal opportunities and on
merit. Candidates are sought who have a complementary range of qualities, competencies
and experience.

The Audit Committee consists of five non-executive Board members. Its principal duties
are to manage external audits of management controls; to review external and internal audit
strategy and to appoint and manage external auditors; to review annual/management
accounts and financial statements; to monitor the performance of the Board’s long-term
investments, and to benchmark the Board’s corporate governance performance.

All vacancies are openly advertised and appointments are made by the Board after a process
of interviewing and selection, carried out by an appointing panel, including independent persons.

THE PROPERTY COMMITTEE

TERMS OF OFFICE
All non-executive members hold office for a term of three years. Consideration for
reappointment is subject to performance, however, a vacating member, other than the
Chairman and Vice-Chairman, will not be eligible for reappointment if they have previously
served three consecutive terms (i.e. nine years).

The Property Committee consists of four non-executive Board members and its principal
duties are to prepare and keep under review the estate management strategies relating to
the Board’s land and property holdings; to consider appropriate opportunities for extending
the Board’s property portfolio, and to review the appointment, performance and fees of
the Board’s external property advisors.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman will not be eligible for reappointment as a member if
they have held office as a member for four consecutive terms (i.e. twelve years).
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01 GEORGE MASSIE

02 MIKE BOWYER

03 CHRIS BAIN

04 COLIN PARKER

05 FRED BOWDEN

06 ALISTAIR MACKENZIE

A Chartered Architect, Town Planner
and Development Consultant,
George has worked both in private
practice and local government on
large-scale, complex development
projects. He is an active member of
the Scottish Council for Development
and Industry, Institute of Directors
and is a former committee member
of the North East Scotland
Preservation Trust.

Mike is a Chartered Engineer
and Chartered Director who has
worked in the oil and gas industry
for over 38 years, holding executive
positions with several companies.
He currently sits on the Board of
Acona AS and is Chair of the
Aberdeen Branch of the Institute
of Directors.

Chris began her career in helicopter
and marine logistics, before
working as a Logistics Manager
with Petrofac, Dubai Petroleum and
Ras Al Khaimah Petroleum. She
headed up Project Services for
Petrofac on the Laggan Tormore
Project before joining the Aberdeen
Harbour Executive in the April
of 2013.

Employed by the Board since 1987,
Colin was appointed Chief Executive
in 2006. He served as Chairman of the
British Ports Association from 2012
to 2014 and remains a member of
their council. Colin is Chairman of the
North East Committee of the Scottish
Council for Development and Industry,
which he joined in 2009.

Fred is the Chairman of Fife-based
Tullis Russell Group, where he was
Chief Executive for two years
before being appointed to the
Board. He is also a Trustee of the
Russell Trust and Non-Executive
Chairman of the leading childcare
company, Childbase.

Alistair has worked in Aberdeen’s
energy industry for more than
20 years. He is currently Regional
Director of Achilles Group Limited,
responsible for delivering supplier
management services to the oil and
gas sector. Alistair is also Chairman
of the Northern Lighthouse Board.

Non-executive member
Board member since 2011
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Non-executive member
Board member since 2013

External Relations Director
Board member since 2014

Chief Executive
Board member since 2003

Non-executive member
Board member since 2011

Chairman
Board member since 2010

BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE 2014
Board
Meetings

Remuneration
Committee

Audit
Committee

Property
Committee

Chris Lloyd (Chairman)

6 of 8

1 of 1

N/A

N/A

Alistair Mackenzie (Vice-Chairman)

8 of 8

1 of 1

N/A

3 of 3

Mike Bowyer

8 of 8

1 of 1

4 of 4

N/A

George Massie

7 of 8

N/A

N/A

3 of 3

Malcolm Laing

8 of 8

N/A

4 of 4

N/A

Fred Bowden

8 of 8

1 of 1

4 of 4

N/A

Howard Woodcock

6 of 8

N/A

N/A

2 of 3

Morag McNeill

8 of 8

N/A

4 of 4

3 of 3

Tony Strachan

8 of 8

N/A

4 of 4

N/A

Colin Parker (Chief Executive)

8 of 8

N/A

N/A

N/A

Chris Bain (External Relations Director)

8 of 8

N/A

N/A

N/A

James Bell (Finance Director)

8 of 8

N/A

N/A

N/A

NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
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EXPERT KNOWLEDGE IN:

FINANCE, LAW,
OIL AND GAS,
PROPERTY,
PORTS, MARINE
AND COMMERCIAL

03 EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS
09 NON-EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS
12 BOARD
MEMBERS
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07 MALCOLM LAING

08 MIKE PORTER

09 MORAG McNEILL

10 JAMES BELL

11 HOWARD WOODCOCK

12 TONY STRACHAN

Malcolm is a Corporate Lawyer
and Partner in Ledingham
Chalmers LLP. He has over 30 years’
experience in corporate and
commercial law, advising a wide
variety of clients and with a
particular knowledge of the energy
service sector. He is also
Vice-Chair of the charity,
Cornerstone Community Care.

Mike joined the oil and gas
industry in the late 1970s and
has experience in the provision of
offshore logistics, marine and
integrated supply-base solutions.
He was Chief Operating Officer
of Peterson Offshore Group of
companies, establishing new
operations internationally before
joining the Harbour Board in
January 2015.

Morag is a practising solicitor with
experience in corporate finance
and the ports industry. Having spent
seven years with Forth Ports plc as
General Counsel and Management
Board Member, Morag is also a
Non-Executive Director of
Caledonian Maritime Assets
Limited, Scottish Exhibition and
Conference Centre Limited and
Social Investment Scotland.

James joined Aberdeen Harbour
Board in 2009 from Caledonian
Brewery, where he had been Head
of Finance since 2002. He trained
with Bird Simpson Chartered
Accountants and has worked with
Meston Reid and Diageo. James is
also Chairman of the Finance
Group of British Ports Association,
which he initiated in 2010.

Howard has been involved in
shipping and marine businesses
for 30 years. He has been Chief
Executive of Bibby Offshore
Holdings Limited since 2005 and
has also helped with the
fundraising for a number of local
organisations, including Inspire
and the River Dee Trust.

Tony is a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. His career was
with the Bank of England and
between 2003 and 2010 he served
as the Bank’s representative in
Scotland. He is Deputy Chair of
the Court of Heriot-Watt University.

Non-executive member
Board member since 2012

Non-executive member
Board member since 2015

Non-executive member
Board member since 2013

Finance Director
Board member since 2011

Vice-Chairman
Board member since 2012

Non-executive member
Board member since 2013
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ABERDEEN MANAGEMENT TEAM

What do you like most
about working at
Aberdeen Harbour

?

01

COLIN PARKER
Chief Executive

06

Working at Aberdeen Harbour means being involved in a key piece of
the region’s economic jigsaw. Long-term strategic decisions made today
ensure future prosperity for generations to come.

02

07

It is a great privilege to be responsible for ensuring that the Engineering
Department continues in its role of maintaining the existing harbour and
to also be part of the project team tasked with potentially providing new,
fit-for-purpose facilities within Nigg Bay.

03

Assistant Harbour Master

Finance Director

08

CHRIS BAIN
External Relations Director
I enjoy working for an organisation which is not owned by shareholders,
but instead exists to serve the needs of its stakeholders – including future
generations. In many ways we are a social enterprise on a large scale.

DEREK ARMSTRONG
Assistant Finance Director
I enjoy working for a dynamic and successful business that operates
on the unusual business model of a Trust Port. Aberdeen Harbour does not
concentrate wholly on profit maximisation, but acts in the overall interests
of all its stakeholders.

05

BRIAN ANDREW
I enjoy working at Aberdeen Harbour as each day has a new challenge in
meeting the needs of our many stakeholders. Everyone has their own
requirements and I get great satisfaction working with them and our staff
in co-ordinating our quayside options to maximise the Board’s facilities and
at the same time minimising turnaround time of the stakeholders’ vessels.

JAMES BELL
I enjoy working for a company that, through its trust-port status, is able to
take a very long-term view in terms of strategy and keeps the needs of its
customers and stakeholders at the forefront of its plans.

04

Assistant Harbour Manager
I enjoy working for Aberdeen Harbour as it is not only one of Britain’s
busiest ports but it is a dynamic, successful and forward-thinking
organisation. I believe that having trust-port status is the best port model
as profits are used for the benefit/modernisation of our port infrastructure.

KEITH YOUNG
Engineering Director

DANNY STROUD

RAY SHAW
Operational Director & Harbour Master
I am pleased to work for an organisation that is very proud of its long
and unique history, but is also able to focus clearly on its future and the
strategic development of the port.

09

MATT NORTH
Commercial Director
It is both reassuring and exciting to see the vast extent of Aberdeen
Harbour’s investment and commitment to modern, first-class marine
infrastructure. The forward vision and potential to drive our capability
further in the form of a new modern harbour facility for Scotland,
serving an ever-evolving maritime sector and its supply chain, is an
opportunity which I am delighted to be part of.
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Britain’s oldest existing business
First established as a business in 1136 by King David I of Scotland, Aberdeen Harbour is, according to the Guinness
Book of Business Records, the oldest existing business in Britain, with a history that has spanned almost 900 years.
It is only when we map this history against the development of Aberdeen itself into a busy and vibrant city, and against a backdrop
of important world events, that we can truly appreciate the port’s incredible story, and its transformation in to a modern,

HARBOUR HISTORY

state-of-the-art facility.

Aberdeen Harbour
departure point for
Scots emigrating to
Holland and Poland

Viking attacks
on Harbour

Fear of Spanish invasion
through Aberdeen –
strict watch kept

Fishing, textiles, wool
and leather work, the
main commodities being
shipped from Harbour

King David grants
charter to Bishop of
Aberdeen to charge
tithe on vessels
entering Harbour –
Aberdeen Harbour
becomes a business

Many local inhabitants
are immigrants from
Flanders, and so French
common language on
the quayside

ABERDEEN
EVENTS

1100

Harbour activity
decreases due to pirate
activity in region

Witch duckings and
criminals drowned
off Shiprow Quay
First crane to
unload a ship
in Harbour

1200

1300

1400

1500

Aberdeen Castle built

King’s College
founded

Marischal College
founded

Plague kills a quarter of
Aberdeen’s population
Aberdeen receives
Royal Charter from
King William the Lion

People of Aberdeen
assist Robert the Bruce
in siege of Aberdeen

WORLD
EVENTS

Provost Skene’s
House built

12

Genghis Khan
crowned Great Khan
of the Mongols

William Wallace hanged
drawn and quartered

Joan of Arc burnt
at the stake

Columbus lands
in Americas

Elizabeth I becomes
Queen of England

Over 200 fishing boats
based in Aberdeen

1961
Aberdeen Harbour
becomes Trust Port

Work begins on
Thomas Telford’s plans
to further extension of
North Pier, South
Breakwater and earliest
peninsula model

Harbour bombed by
Luftwaffe

Charles II Act to
raise money for
improvements to
Aberdeen Harbour

John Smeaton
completes first section
of the North Pier

Torry Marine Base
constructed
Harbour office built at
Regent Quay
Waterloo, Regent,
Trinity and Upper
Quays rebuilt

1600

1700

1800

City welcomes Duke
of Cumberland and
his troops before Battle
of Culloden

Union of
the Parliaments

1900

2000

Aberdeen Football
Club is formed

Iconic University of
Aberdeen library built
First North Sea oil
pipeline opened

World War I

French Revolution

Union of the Crowns

US-led coalition
invasion of Iraq

First Opium Wars

World War II

Robotic vehicle lands
on Mars
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2014 STATISTICALLY
5,900m
TOTAL QUAY
LENGTH

NUMBER OF
PEOPLE
TO BENEFIT
FROM OUR
SPONSORSHIP

18,448

% CHANCE OF SEEING
DOLPHINS AT
ABERDEEN HARBOUR

93%

41 SHIPPING
CONNECTIONS 2014

BIGGEST
SINGLE VESSEL
GROSS TONNAGE

19,128
TONNES

LONGEST VESSEL

166.5m
ANGOLA AUSTRALIA BELGIUM BRAZIL CAMEROON CANADA CHINA
CONGO (DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC) CYPRUS DENMARK EGYPT EQUATORIAL GUINEA
FALKLAND ISLANDS FAROE ISLANDS FRANCE GABON GEORGIA GERMANY GHANA
GREECE ICELAND INDIA IVORY COAST MALTA MAURITANIA MEXICO MOROCCO
NIGERIA NORWAY PORTUGAL ROMANIA RUSSIA SENEGAL SINGAPORE
SOUTH KOREA SPAIN SWEDEN THE NETHERLANDS TUNISIA USA VENEZUELA
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STAKEHOLDER

BENEFIT
£5.8million

SPEAKING
TONNAGE OF VESSELS
28
26
24
22
20

Million Gross Tonnes

18
16
14
12
10
8

MILLIONAIRE
SUPERYACHT

01 93

6

2
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

VESSEL ARRIVALS

FINANCIAL RESULTS
28
26
24
22
20
18

£ Millions

16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
2010

2011

Turnover

2012

2013

2014

Profit before Tax

CARGO TONNAGE
3.0

4,569

SUPPLY VESSELS

835

STANDBY SAFETY
VESSELS

681

PASSENGER &
FREIGHT FERRIES

505

CARGO VESSELS

293

TANKERS

98

OTHER OIL-RELATED
VESSELS

83

FISHING VESSELS

76

DIVE SUPPORT
VESSELS

29

YACHTS

2.5

2.0
Million Tonnes

31m

EMPLOYEES

4

0

WIDEST
VESSEL

1.5

1.0

7

0.5

0
2010
Imports

2011

2012
Exports

2013

2014

7,254

CRUISE VESSELS

ACTS OF PILOTAGE

2014 Q3
BUSIEST QUARTER EVER

7.8M
VESSEL
TONNES

NUMBER OF
CHARITIES
SPONSORED

18
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2014: OPERATING SUCCESS
ALTHOUGH KNOWN FOR ITS
ROLE AS THE PRIMARY MARINE
SUPPORT BASE FOR THE UK’S
ENERGY SECTOR, MUCH OF
ABERDEEN HARBOUR’S SUCCESS
HAS BEEN DUE TO THE WIDE
VARIETY OF BUSINESS IT
SUPPORTS, AND THE RANGE OF
COMMODITIES WHICH CROSSES
ITS QUAYS.
Services to Orkney and Shetland
Islands account for one third of all
non-oil and gas related cargo

shipped to ports within the UK
from the Harbour. The two
scheduled services which operate
to the islands form the mainstay of
harbour activity. Serco Northlink is
the Harbour Board’s single biggest
customer, and their governmentfunded freight and passenger
services to the islands continue to
thrive, with passenger numbers
exceeding 150,000 for the second
year running.
2014 was also a very successful
year for a range of specific markets.
Shipments of scrap increased by
26.8% and it was an exceptional

16 Aberdeen Harbour Board Annual Review 2014/15

year for grain shipments, in particular
bulk barley exports, which
increased by an incredible 288.3%.
The port welcomed new business in
the form of an additional scheduled
continental sailing by Sea Cargo,
whilst the year also witnessed the
start of a series of shipments to the
Falkland Islands. These sailings,
in support of drilling operations in
the Sea Lion Field, have equated
to almost 40,000 vessel tonnes and
over 10,000 tonnes of cargo.
Indeed, international trade through
Aberdeen Harbour increased overall

by 12% in 2014, compared with
the previous year, and the port
directly traded with 41 different
countries. International trade now
accounts for almost 20% of the
port’s total cargo, with Norway our
biggest single trading partner
outwith the UK, whilst the
European Union accounts for 10%
of our total cargo handled.
Africa has become our biggest
trading continent outwith Europe,
and 26% of this cargo is attributable
to the oil and gas producing
countries of West Africa. The Board
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Oil and Bulk Terminals
General Cargo

Board Commitment to Marine Safety: Aberdeen Harbour
Board is committed to marine safety and to full compliance
with the UK Port Marine Safety Code.

are confident that international
trade will continue to grow,
transforming Aberdeen Harbour
into an even greater hub
for overseas commerce.
North Sea oil and gas activity,
however, still accounts for 66% of
the port’s total shipping tonnage.
Despite the peaks and troughs in
the oil price, vessel arrivals to
and from the United Kingdom
Continental Shelf have varied by no
more than 600 per year for the last
ten years, displaying an incredibly
consistent demand from this
industry. Whilst the number of

vessels has remained at a constant
level, this belies the fact that these
vessels are, in general terms,
significantly larger and that the
shipping tonnage that this activity
represents has increased by 45%
over the same period.
This trend for ever-larger vessels is
demonstrated by our customers
across various industry sectors and,
combined with sustained high
activity, represents a challenge to
the port in terms of lack of capacity.
As a result, it is becoming
increasingly clear that the need for
expansion is a vital one.
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Adventure
at the Harbour
The Harbour welcomed the largest
gross tonnage vessel ever to dock in
Aberdeen this year, highlighting the
benefits of the recent widening and
deepening of the navigation channel.
The MV Pacific Adventure berthed in
Aberdeen in October, and has a gross
registered tonnage of 19,128, beating the
previous record holder, the Skandi Arctic,
by 488 tonnes. The 160m long, 27m wide,

The following AHB staff
gained the Certificate of
Competence RYA/MCA
Powerboat Advanced with
commercial endorsement:
GRAEME WESTLAND
GORDON DALGARNO
GEORGE STEPHEN
GEORGE ROSS
ALAN STUART
COLIN MCCOMBIE
RORY FORBES
ALEX REID

Adventure is a general cargo vessel and
was carrying a cargo of oilfield materials
from Mauritania on its recent visit.

A Home to Oil and Gas
2014 marked the 50th anniversary of
the first oil company, Shell UK
Exploration, contracting the services
of Aberdeen Harbour. Few people
would have been able to predict,
as they visited the Harbour at that
time to marvel at the ‘strange looking
vessels with their drilling derricks
and helicopter platforms’, that the
port would be transformed over the
next fifty years as a result of these
humble beginnings.
Since those early days, Aberdeen
Harbour has accommodated the arrival of
more than 195,000 vessels associated

with the offshore oil and gas sector,
and has witnessed many peaks and
troughs in the oil price, with this
seemingly arbitrary figure playing an
increasingly important role in the
fortunes of the local economy.
The recent drop in oil price has clearly
had an impact on the industry, and yet
Aberdeen Harbour continues to
experience high levels of activity.
Oil and gas related tonnages remain
relatively steady, and 2014 witnessed
over 5,600 oil and gas related vessel
arrivals, equating to approximately
18.6 million gross vessel tonnes. These

figures are almost a replica of those
experienced in 2013 and, to date, 2015
has followed a similar activity profile.
As this sector accounts for less than 50%
of the port’s revenue, the impact has
perhaps been tempered by activity in
other areas of business. Yet the Board
also views activity associated with the
maturing North Sea fields, such as
inspection, repair and maintenance and,
in particular, decommissioning,
as markets that will continue to grow for
many years to come. The greatest
challenge to the port, therefore, is to
provide not only the additional capacity

that this activity will require, but also
the deepwater berthage that these
operations, with their larger vessels,
will demand. The current economic
climate, therefore, makes the Board’s
plans for the development of deepwater
berthage in Nigg Bay all the more pressing.
Should this development go ahead,
it would constitute another chapter in
the story of Aberdeen Harbour’s
long-established relationship with the
energy sector in the North Sea and would
ensure that Aberdeen Harbour remains
‘Scotland’s North Sea Gateway’ for
many years to come.

LIST OF COMMODITIES: ROAD SALT • SALMON FEED • TIMBER • CALCIUM
CARBONATE • SLURRY • TUBULARS • SUBSEA EQUIPMENT • SCRAP METAL
GRAIN • BARITES • BENTONITE • REFINED OIL PRODUCTS • FRESH SALMON
LIVESTOCK • WIND FARM COMPONENTS • FOOD PRODUCTS

Orkney and Shetland Connection remains strong
2014 was a year of change for Serco Northlink with the opportunity
afforded by their annual overhaul programme to re-livery the passenger
vessels Hjaltland, Hrossey and Hamnavoe.
Since then the exciting and evocative logo is regularly the object of keen
photographers both morning and evening, as ‘Magnus’ draws the attention
of passengers and public.
Volumes for the Scottish Government-funded service remain strong, with the
equivalent of some 33,000 trailers being shipped in 2014, more than 151,000
passengers and almost 21,000 cars passing north or south. Livestock figures
remain firm at 25,472 cattle and 137,605 sheep, demonstrating the integral role
Aberdeen Harbour plays in supporting the Northern Isles agriculture sector.
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Swiss Beauty Graces Granite City
As the centre for the oil and gas marine activity in the UK, Aberdeen
Harbour is home to many of the industry’s supply vessels, anchor handlers
and safety standby boats and, if you were to view the Harbour on any
given day, chances are that’s what you would see. All that changed for a
few days last year, when a Swiss businessman berthed his £493million
superyacht ‘Vive-la-Vie’ in the Granite City. Measuring an impressive 195ft,
the custom-built vessel boasts seven cabins, a gym, jacuzzi, full bar, glass
elevator, and a dining room table that can be raised electronically to create
a dance floor area for parties.

Life on the ocean waves
Aberdeen Harbour had direct trading links with 41
countries in 2014: this means that more than 100,000 vessel
crew members visit the port each year. We were keen to
gain insight into what life is like to work on one of these
routes so we joined up with the crew of the UAL Bodewes.
Here is their story:
Captain Arie and his international crew of Dutch, Russian,
Ukrainian and Filipino crewmen, set out from Aberdeen in late
October 2014. Their 11-week journey took them to Egersund in
Norway, then on to Antwerp in Belgium, Las Palmas in Gran
Canaria, before heading south to Porto Amboim and Luanda
in Angola, and then back to Aberdeen in early 2015.

Captain Arie told us about the UAL Bodewes: “The vessel is
named after the Dutch shipyard in which she was built in 2012.
She accommodates a state-of-the-art wave-piercing bow shape,
which allows the vessel to operate in a particularly fuel-efficient
and CO2-friendly manner. The cargo is predominantly oil and gas
related pipe, equipment and chemicals, as well as refrigerators
with frozen food”.

at sea. I believe this is a real morale boost for the crew, who are
away from home for months at a time.
Security fears can also be a major factor when visiting African
ports, and the vessel has both procedures and safeguards
built in to mitigate these risks. When in a high-risk port, UAL
provides quayside security for its vessels, and my crew do not
disembark during their time in port. We are always watchful for
pirates when at sea too.”

Rough weather and boredom are the two most difficult things to
deal with on any long sea voyage, but UAL is focused on the
well-being of the crew and protection of the cargo.
“We allow our crews to use laptops and tablets to communicate
with their families at home – a luxury not often available to crews

LENGTH

119.05m

v
v

GROSS TONNAGE

v

27 December 2014: Arrives at Gydynia

v

6 January 2015: Departs Gydynia
returning to Aberdeen

30 October 2014: Arrives at Antwerp to
load 75% of cargo
1 November 2014: Departs Antwerp for
Las Palmas, enduring rough weather
21 December 2014: Arrives at Antwerp
and leaves on 23 December

TOTAL DISTANCE
TRAVELLED (miles)
HALFWAY ROUND THE WORLD

v

9 January 2015: Arrives back at Aberdeen

from Holland,
Russia, Ukraine and
Philippines

12,567

28 October 2014: Departs Egersund
for Antwerp

v

11CREW

25 October 2014: UAL Bodewes begins
journey with 25% of cargo for Porto
Amboim loaded in Aberdeen

v

15.8m

26 October 2014: Arrives at Egersund, and
crew load more cargo for Porto Amboim

v

BREADTH

The journey takes two and a half months in total, after which,
Captain Arie and his crew look forward to some time off before
their next assignment.

8 November 2014: Arrives at Las Palmas
for a bunker stop and departs the same
day for Porto Amboim

13 December 2014: Arrives at Las Palmas
and departs same day

5,569

2012

20 November 2014: Arrives at Porto
Amboim and the crew begin
discharging cargo
24 November 2014: The crew complete
discharge of cargo. UAL Bodewes
departs for Luanda

25 October 2014: Arrives at Luanda
and the crew begin discharge of cargo

v

YEAR BUILT

v

WAVEPIERCING
BOW

v

CO2-FRIENDLY

2 December 2014: Departs Luanda
en route back to Aberdeen

BODEWES HOLLAND
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Maintenance & Engineering
THE CIVIL, MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING WORK COMPLETED BY THE
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT HELPS TO ENSURE THAT EFFICIENT HARBOUR OPERATIONS
CONTINUE THROUGHOUT THE YEAR. LARGER PROJECTS SUCH AS THE BREAKWATER
REPAIRS AND THE PLANNED MAINTENANCE DREDGING HAVE TO BE CO-ORDINATED
WITH THE PROGRAMMED INSPECTION AND REPAIR OF THE HUNDREDS OF ASSETS
WITHIN THE HARBOUR ESTATE. THE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT PROGRAMMES,
MANAGES AND CARRIES OUT THIS WORK.
The Torry Quay Reconstruction Project transformed the Harbour estate on the south side
of the River Dee. The £33million redevelopment was completed in 2013 providing
approximately 400 metres of quayside and 17,500m² of working laydown area.
2014 has seen the continuation of construction work within this area of the Harbour, extending
the laydown areas and providing modern entrance and exit facilities to the Torry Marine Base.
Construction of the final section of reinforced concrete decking within the base was started in
late 2014 and finished Spring 2015. This completed the major civil engineering works that
Aberdeen Harbour Board started in Torry in 2010.

BEFORE: Boom protected during infill

AFTER: Infill operations

Torry Quay construction contractors commended
MCLAUGHLIN & HARVEY, THE MAIN CONTRACTOR ON THE TORRY QUAY REDEVELOPMENT
CONTRACT, RECEIVED CEEQUAL AWARD RATING OF ‘EXCELLENT’ FOR THE PROJECT.
The team were faced with different challenges, including minimising risk to the water
environment and marine ecology; minimising material and water use; and ensuring high levels
of engagement with the local community and key stakeholders.
CEEQUAL is the evidence-based sustainability assessment rating and awards scheme for civil
engineering, infrastructure, landscaping and public realm projects, celebrating the achievement
of high environmental and social performance.

20 Aberdeen Harbour Board Annual Review 2014/15

Keith Young
Keith Young, Aberdeen Harbour’s
Engineering Director, took over from
Ken Reilly in April 2014. He took some
time out to reflect on his first year and
what he’s looking forward to next.
“I feel very fortunate to have been given the
opportunity to become Engineering Director at
Aberdeen Harbour Board. My first year has passed
extremely quickly, partly due to the diverse nature
of the role keeping me constantly busy, but also
due to how much I have genuinely enjoyed it.
The Engineering Department has a very experienced
and knowledgeable workforce and the support
provided by them helped me become an integral
part of that workforce as quickly as possible.
My predecessor, Ken Reilly, set the bar very high.
I am extremely grateful to him for the invaluable
assistance he has provided throughout this first year.
This is a very exciting time to be involved with
engineering in Aberdeen Harbour. We have the
opportunity to build a new harbour at Nigg Bay,
which will substantially expand the existing harbour
and transform the facilities we provide. Potentially,
we are building berthing and quayside support areas
that are fit for the next 30 to 50 years, but we will
also construct the massive breakwaters that will
protect the new facilities and allow redevelopment
throughout the next 100 years and more.”

Scott Buchan
Scott Buchan has been part
of the engineering team for
14 years and he took on the
challenging responsibilities of
the port’s Hydrographic Surveyor
in late 2014.
“In my new role I am looking forward
to taking the lead on vital tasks like
producing the navigation charts that
vessel crews need to operate safely
around the port. My first big project is
organising and supervising 2015’s
maintenance dredging contract,
but I’ll also be co-ordinating the use of
the Sea Herald, our multi-purpose
vessel, to carry out regular surveys and
maintain dredged depths.”

Record Levels of
Annual Maintenance
Dredging is essential for safe navigation and ensures the Harbour maintains the deepwater berths
required by our customers.
Each spring Aberdeen Harbour removes accumulated sediment from the port,
the actual amount dependent on the duration and intensity of winter storms.
An unusually long period of heavy weather in winter 2013/14 meant last year’s
maintenance dredge was one of the largest in recent times.

The same heavy weather was also responsible for a degree of damage to the
port’s North Pier. Bearing the brunt of storms at sea, the North Pier provides
essential shelter to the navigation channel and requires annual maintenance
to prepare it for the winter ahead.

The work to remove around 280,000m3 of material over 29 days was the final
campaign overseen by Eddie Aitken, who retired as the port’s hydrographic
surveyor after 35 years of service. It also proved an inspiring period for
graduate engineer Claire Andrews, who joined Eddie for work experience during
the campaign and was so enthused by the work that she wants to make a
career of it.

In 2014, the Harbour underlined its commitment to safeguarding and
improving its existing facilities with a £650,000 programme of repairs and
refurbishment for this 200-year-old asset, all aimed at maintaining this
important facility for many years to come.

CLAIRE ANDREWS

EDDIE AITKEN

BEFORE

AFTER
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2014 1

KEY FACTS 2014
ENVIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS 2014
0

FATALITIES

1

Aberdeen Harbour introduced a new, and improved, reporting system in
2014 and it captured 14 environmental incidents during the year, fiveREPORTABLE
more
LOST-TIME INJURIES
than in 2013. This heightened level of reporting allows a greater range of
incidents to be addressed. Marine pollution from port users accounted for
ACCIDENTS
71% of the total and of these, 60% were caused by equipment failure
and
40% when tanks were damaged or accidentally overfilled. A 24-hour callout
arrangement with marine pollution clean-up specialists is maintained.
NEAR-MISSES

REPORTABLE
LOST-TIME INJURIES

4

3

ACCIDENTS

4

5

NEAR-MISSES

22

23

SAFETY CONCERNS

1

SAFETY CONCERNS

2013

Pollution (Equipment Failure)

4

REPORTABLE
ACCIDENTS

0
0

FATALITIES

1

2014 1

LOST-TIME
ACCIDENTS

Pollution (Overflows and Punctures)
2

0
1

Dust

FATALITIES

Noise

REPORTABLE
LOST-TIME INJURIES

Inappropriate disposal of waste

6

4

ACCIDENTS

4

2014

NEAR-MISSES

22

> Improved hazard awareness amongst staff
> Improved adverse-event reporting and investigation

SAFETY CONCERNS

> Improved action tracking

DOLPHIN
FACTS

2014

> TORRY BATTERY IS A GOOD SITE FROM WHICH
TO VIEW DOLPHINS
> BOTTLENOSE IS THE MOST COMMONLY SEEN
SPECIES AT ABERDEEN
> SCOTTISH BOTTLENOSE DOLPHINS ARE THE
WORLD’S LARGEST

> THE NORTH EAST HAS THE LARGEST RESIDENT
DOLPHIN POPULATION IN SCOTLAND
(APPROXIMATELY 190)
> RISSO’S DOLPHINS, WHITE-BEAKED DOLPHINS,
MINKE WHALES AND HARBOUR PORPOISES CAN
ALSO BE SEEN

6%

19%

ENERGY USAGE
Diesel

94%

Gas
6%

6%

19%

Vessels

19%

34%

Vehicles
94%47%

94%

47%

Total: 141,247 kWh

41%
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35%

34%

Maintenance
Department
Marine
Operations Centre
Head Office

Total: 740,147 kWh

41%

34%

47%

Electricity

41%

35%

24%

Maintenance
Department
Marine
Operations Centre
Head Office

Total: 430,097 kWh

35%

Aberdeen Harbour Board are committed to compliance with the UK Port Marine Safety Code, and recognise their individual and collective responsibility
as Duty Holders. Aberdeen Harbour Board’s independent Designated Person has presented the Board with audit reports of the Harbour’s Marine Safety
24%
24%
Management System throughout the year, and a summary of incident reports is available on the Aberdeen Harbour and Marine Safety Forum websites.

Protecting People and
the Environment
Managing Health, Safety and Environmental risks in the port requires
robust systems that address the Harbour Board’s own responsibilities
as well as facilitating effective HSE management amongst port users.

IAN SCOTT
Health & Safety Advisor

In late 2014, Lloyd’s Register

top-level direction to the continued

requires it and on the strategic

more effective investigations to

Quality Assurance approved

evolution of the system.

management of risk in the uniquely

take place in less time.

the Harbour’s integrated
Health, Safety and
Environmental management
system to the international
standards OHSAS 18001
and ISO 14001. This marked
the culmination of a
project to progressively
harmonise the company’s
approach to managing risks
to people, property and
the environment.
Formal management review of HSE
activity is an essential part of this
process. Under the integrated
system the Board’s executive team
now meet monthly, instead of
quarterly, to evaluate recent activity
and performance as well as provide

A key element of this evolution has
been the process of simplifying and

complex operating environment of
the Harbour.

Effective management of adverse
events poses a unique challenge in

consolidating hundreds of internal

To support this, every member of

the port, where the majority of the

procedures to make them easier to

staff has completed an HSE

activities causing them are carried

use and simpler to administer.

competence and training needs

out by port users operating outside

This approach has already seen the

assessment in 2014, designed to

our control. The Harbour has an

number of controlled documents

ensure that the company is

important role as both an exemplar

reduced by 80% without

equipping its most important

and champion of best practice that

compromising the effectiveness of

resource, its personnel, with the

is reflected in its engagement

the management system.

tools needed to drive continuous

approach to partnerships like the

improvements in performance.

Port Safety Group, which facilitates

Reducing the amount of time spent
on administration and reinstating

Other elements of the system have

line management as the primary

also been enhanced. A web-based

way in which the company

system for reporting adverse

discharges its HSE responsibilities

events – whether safety or

has allowed the HSE advisors to

environment related – has

focus on providing specialist

dramatically improved the quality

technical advice to any person that

of data being collected, allowing

knowledge-sharing and joint
problem-solving.
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From the Mountains
to the Sea
From its source in the Cairngorms to its mouth at Aberdeen Harbour,
the River Dee and all burns and lochs in between, form a rich and
valuable ecosystem.
The Dee Catchment Partnership brings together around 20 organisations, including Aberdeen Harbour,
to co-ordinate activities that will protect and improve this important habitat. From peatland and riparian
woodland restoration in the upper Dee, to an extensive network of buffer strips in the middle catchment,
and control of invasive plants right down to the Harbour, these actions are part of a comprehensive
management plan that was agreed by all the partners.
The Partnership is also tasked with raising awareness of the river’s importance and the pressures it is
under. Joanna Dick, their Outreach Officer, works with schools, community groups, ghillies and rangers
throughout the catchment to improve understanding of the ways human activity affects the river system.
To hear more about the Partnership’s work visit their website theriverdee.org, follow them on
Facebook or Twitter, or look out for the Outreach Officer’s weekly column in the Deeside Piper.

Dolphin-Friendly Code launched
THE MOUTH OF THE DEE IS A
FEEDING GROUND FOR BOTTLENOSE
DOLPHINS, BRINGING THEM INTO
CLOSE PROXIMITY WITH THE PORT’S
OPERATIONS. IN EARLY 2015,
THE HARBOUR LAUNCHED A CODE
OF PRACTICE TO ENSURE THAT
THE ANIMALS ARE ABLE TO
CONTINUE TO SEARCH FOR PREY
WITH MINIMAL DISTURBANCE.
A joint taskforce including the Harbour, East
Grampian Coastal Partnership, Police Scotland

24

and Scottish Natural Heritage produced the
Code with expert advice from the University
of Aberdeen, RSPB, the Sea Mammal Research
Unit and Whale and Dolphin Conservation.
The guidance suggests boats maintain a
steady course at the slowest possible speed,
stay away from the breakwaters, avoid directly
approaching the animals, avoid turning
engines on and off, and advises that people
should never feed, touch or swim with
the dolphins.
The code has been widely distributed to
vessel owners, port users and stakeholders.

Aberdeen Port
Safety Group
Most of the diverse activities that take place in the port are
carried out by port users. So many diverse organisations
working in such close proximity brings unique challenges to
the management of Health, Safety and the Environment.
A safety liaison group was formed
in 2004 as part of an industry initiative to
encourage dialogue on safety amongst
port users. In 2014, as a result of growing
membership and the increasing importance
of the group in delivering HSE performance
improvements, it was renamed Aberdeen
Port Safety Group (PSG).
The PSG provides a forum for the 23 members
to benefit from sharing best practice,
joint identification of risk patterns and common
co-ordination of safety campaigns.

Bringing port users together as partners also
allows the efficient procurement of safety
resources and training. In December 2014,
the Harbour was able to bring IOSH qualified
trainers to Aberdeen to deliver the
‘Managing Safely’ course, with places
available to PSG members.
If you would like to join the Port
Safety Group, please contact Aberdeen
Harbour’s Health and Safety Advisor
by calling 01224 597000, or emailing
safety@aberdeen-harbour.co.uk.

DOLPHIN WATCH
With visitors to the Torry Battery having a nine-in-ten chance of seeing dolphins feeding
in the port’s navigation channel, Aberdeen Harbour has become one of the best places in
Europe to go dolphin watching. In response to this, and partly funded by Aberdeen Harbour’s
Community Action Fund, the RSPB runs the ‘Dolphinwatch’ Project each summer.
Located at the Tory Battery viewpoint, Dolphinwatch aims to enthuse and inspire the local
community about the natural environment, increasing awareness that bottlenose dolphins
swim so close to the city centre.
In 2014 the project lasted 18 weeks, from 10 April to 10 August, and staff were stationed near
the viewpoint to provide information and the use of binoculars and telescopes.
The RSPB team also introduced the ‘School a Dolphin’ Programme, again using funds made
available by the Harbour Board’s Community Action Fund. The project involved five schools
from the local area, ranging from nursery to secondary. The participating schools in Torry
were each visited by a member of RSPB Education Team, who taught the students about
cetaceans and marine litter. The funding also paid for the students to travel to and from the
Dolphinwatch site, and for a follow-up visit from the RSPB team member at their school.
The Dolphinwatch team also has the aim of increasing our knowledge about dolphin
behaviour, and data was collected by staff and volunteers throughout the summer, recording
cetacean sightings, behaviour and population dynamics. Over the 18-week period, dolphins
were found to be present 93% of the time.
In 2014 Dolphinwatch had 1,668 members of the public visit them at Torry Battery, raising
more than £1,500 in charitable donations and recruiting 52 members to the RSPB. With the
Aberdeen Harbour Community Action Fund pledging financial support for Dolphinwatch until
2018, the project is set to grow in popularity in the coming years. The project will be in place
from 1 April again this year – we highly recommend a visit!

Dolphinwatch Marquee ©Beth Mainwaring (RSPB)

“ Thank you for this fabulous

experience. I loved seeing the
dolphins. My favourite
part was doing all of the
activities. I will definitely think
twice before dropping
litter again.

”
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Building the Future Today
The aim of a Trust Port is to continuously improve infrastructure, facilities and service levels, to reflect the
needs of its stakeholders. This requisite for continuous improvement is something that Aberdeen Harbour
Board has embraced and, in recent decades, the Board has invested almost £200million in improvements.
This has helped to secure its position as the principal port supplying the oil and gas sector in Western
Europe, representing a GVA of £1.5billion to the local and national economy.
This does, however, present specific challenges.
The port has been operating at or near capacity
for several years. Its unique position at the heart
of the city means that there is limited capacity to
handle rising vessel numbers, and the growing
trend for new, larger, multi-purpose vessels in the
oil and gas sector has created a demand for
deepwater berthing which the current facilities
cannot fully support.
This demand is unlikely to diminish. Even with
the most pessimistic of predictions regarding the
oil price, a sustained lower price is likely to result
in escalating demand for offshore inspection,
repair and maintenance activity, as UKCS fields
mature, and demand increases for deepwater
berthing associated with decommissioning. This
sector is estimated to be worth approximately
£30billion, and the Board is all too aware of the
brief window of opportunity that exists to secure
and keep this business in the North East of Scotland,
rather than lose it to the likes of deepwater ports
in Norway, or facilities in the North of England.
In light of this, and the potential for new business
streams such as larger cruise ships, as well as
providing significant support for the renewables
sector, the Board is in the final stages of developing
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a planning application that would see the port
expand into neighbouring Nigg Bay, to the
south of the existing harbour. This site has been
recognised by the Scottish Government as part of
the National Planning Framework (3) as one of
only 14 infrastructure projects considered of
national significance. Funding has also been
awarded from the European Union and Scottish
Enterprise, to support a detailed Environmental
Impact Assessment and wave climate modelling –
both fundamental inputs to any future
planning application.
The benefits of additional facilities at Nigg Bay are
considerable. The development would provide an
additional 1,700 metres of quay, a minimum draft
of nine metres, a wide entrance and turning circle,
and a laydown area of more than 125,000 square
metres. It would also have heavy lift capabilities,
fully serviced berths, and the capability to
accommodate larger vessels and future predicted
traffic flows.
Location is important, and Nigg Bay retains a
close proximity to the city’s numerous vendors,
fabricators, company headquarters and
businesses, whilst avoiding the traffic congestion
associated with the city centre. An improved

coast road would provide a link through to Altens
and, subsequently, to the Aberdeen Western
Peripheral Route, providing ease of access to the
south, west and north of the city.
An independent report on the economic case for
the expansion, commissioned by Scottish
Enterprise, estimated that, under a full
development scenario, additional facilities at the
Nigg Bay site would result in Aberdeen Harbour
contributing £2billion annually to the Scottish
economy and supporting 15,000 jobs, by year 20
– an increase of 30% on current figures.
Of this, an additional £500million would be
directly injected into Aberdeen City and Shire.
The Board has also undertaken a major
consultation programme with its key
stakeholders, including customers, local and
national government, industry bodies, local
residents and interest groups to assess all
possible impacts and opportunities that the
development of additional facilities may represent.
Subject to Board approval, construction could
commence in early 2017 with a view to full
completion by 2020-21.

Designing Nigg Bay
through Expert Advice
Although ultimately developed by Aberdeen
Harbour Board, the plans for the new facilities
at Nigg Bay have evolved with much support
from a broad range of external expertise.
Around £4million has been spent
on ensuring decisions are informed
by specialist advice and site
investigations, as well as consultation
that gathers relevant local knowledge.

ship’s bridge simulators, and
considerable time has been spent
manoeuvring different types of
vessel around the new port in a
variety of weather conditions.

Engagement has been particularly
important in the development
of the designs, with port users and
industry bodies describing the
facilities they need now and in
the future. As a result, a variety
of port layouts were considered,
which were then filtered down to
the current design, which is
considered to offer the greatest
operational flexibility.

As design work draws to a close,
the work to date must be ‘proven’
to verify that the earlier computer
models were accurate, and to
establish that the proposed
structures meet the necessary
performance standards. This is
done by constructing a 1/80 scale
model of the port in a large wave
tank and carefully monitoring how
it responds to a range of simulated
weather conditions. This £250,000
project has been commissioned
and will take place during
summer 2015.

One of the most carefully
considered decisions has been
selecting the optimal position
and length of the two breakwaters,
which is crucial to minimise the
potential for weather disruption
in the new port. Their final position
is the result of numerous iterative
improvements supported by
computer modelling of wave climate.
The layout has also been tested by
the Harbour Master and Port
Marine Superintendent utilising
one of the UK’s most advanced

Accompanying the ongoing
design work is a comprehensive
Environmental Impact Assessment
(EIA), and the resulting
Environmental Statement will
be used to inform the planning
consent process. The scope for
this assessment was considerable,
and the individual studies are
listed. The EIA is due to be
completed late Summer 2015.

Environmental Impact Assessment Elements
SHIPPING AND NAVIGATION

GEOPHYSICAL

Ship movements in the local area are
analysed and predictions are made
about changes that the construction
and operation of the facility may
bring. The results are also used to
help design effective navigational
aids and a safe system of operation
for the new port.

Research and site investigation is
used to establish whether
contamination exists and to gain
information about local ground
conditions. This allows them to choose
appropriate designs and specify
lower impact construction methods.

NUISANCE AND AIR QUALITY
WATER ENVIRONMENT
Extensive fieldwork characterises
the local coastal and freshwater
environment. This data is used to
create models that predict whether
the development will affect local
currents and patterns of coastal
erosion/sedimentation. The impact
of climate change on sea level
and changes to coastal flood risk is
also investigated.

TRANSPORTATION
Predicted traffic at the new port is
fed into a computer model of Aberdeen’s
road network to identify the impact
of the development. The traffic
impacts are measured on roads
nearby, as well as at key junctions
on routes further afield.

VISUAL IMPACT
A computer-generated image of
the new port is superimposed on
photographs taken from viewpoints
all around the city so the way it
changes the landscape can
be assessed.

Predictions about future activity, ship
numbers and vehicle movements are
used to produce models showing any
increases in noise, vibration, light
pollution, odour or reduced air quality.

ECOLOGY
Composed of many smaller studies,
the ecological impact assessment
examines the effect of the development
on biodiversity in the air, the sea
and on land. Particular attention
will be placed on the potential for
underwater noise and sediment
plumes during construction.

CULTURAL HERITAGE
Research and fieldwork is used to
identify locations where evidence of
the area’s long, rich history of human
activity need to be protected or
properly recorded.

SOCIO-ECONOMICS
A broad study of the potential impact
the development may have on the
local, regional and national economies.

Building Baselines
Predicting how the new
facilities might interact
with the natural
environment depends on
a sound understanding of
existing conditions.

Example of Wave Propagation Modelling for Nigg Bay

To ensure that the full range of
seasonal variations are
captured, fieldwork to collect
information began in early 2014
and will continue till autumn
2015. Visitors to Nigg Bay
during this time might notice
yellow buoys at sea. These
mark the location of equipment
collecting data about waves,
water flow and sediment
movement as well as recording
the characteristic noises made
by marine mammals.
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Engaging on all levels
ALBERT BASIN

During 2014 Aberdeen Harbour Board carried out a programme of
consultation, regarding its Nigg Bay expansion plans, which was the
largest in its recent history. Through presentations, stakeholder
meetings and public events, the Board engaged with customers,
port users, industry bodies, local residents, local interest groups
and politicians, both locally and nationally.
Although this process continues to this day, and the results are helping to
shape the Harbour’s plans, in early 2014 the need to widen the focus of this
consultation emerged. It had become clear that a major consideration
should be how to maximise the impact of this significant investment for
local business and communities in the wider geographical area, and to plan
for necessary infrastructure.
Aberdeen City Council, through discussions with Scottish Enterprise and the
Harbour Board, identified the need to prepare a Development Framework
that would consider the opportunities presented by investment in the new
harbour in terms of economic development, regeneration and environmental
improvements. This would also address the co-ordination of essential
infrastructure, and identify opportunities for strategic improvements to the
road and rail network.

Focusing on Altens, East Tullos and Nigg Bay, the resulting series of
workshops and exhibitions started in September 2014 and continued
through to Spring 2015. Events took place in a broad range of locations,
including the Old Torry Community Hall, Aberdeen College Altens Campus,
Union Square, East Tullos Learning Centre and Altens Community Centre.
The study opened up discussion about planning policies and proposals,
such as the Local Development Plan, the Aberdeen Harbour Development
Framework and the City Centre Masterplan.
The Study also sits within the context of the presently adopted and future
Aberdeen Local Development Plans with a view to it being approved by
Councillors to form part of the statutory Development Plan. The Development
Framework has, however, taken a long-term approach to placemaking,
infrastructure provision and land-use planning. It must be considered not only
in the context of current planning policy, but must be flexible enough to
retain relevancy throughout numerous plan cycles.
The Framework created a valuable opportunity for the Harbour to
communicate openly with people who might be affected by expansion into
Nigg Bay, underlining the Board’s continued commitment to dialogue with
the local community.

➟
28 Aberdeen Harbour Board Annual Review 2014

➟

➟

Support from the European Commission
ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD WAS
AWARDED SIGNIFICANT FUNDING FROM
THE EUROPEAN COMMISSION’S TEN-T 2013
TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE INITIATIVE
IN SUPPORT OF THE ONGOING STUDIES
INTO THE POTENTIAL EXPANSION OF THE
HARBOUR INTO NIGG BAY.
The funding, which was awarded at the end of
2014, was targeted at the development of an
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA),
which is now ongoing, and the modelling of
wave climate conditions in the proposed port,
using a specially constructed scaled model.
A total of €752,500 (£600,000) was awarded,
50% of the total costs of these studies, with the
balance being met by the Board.

WHAT
NEXT

?

The Commission described the Board’s
application for a new Torry Harbour as
‘relevant, realistic and consistent’.

public funding in support of the Nigg Bay Project,
and we hope that similar funding to this will be
secured in support of the construction project itself”.

Colin Parker, Chief Executive of Aberdeen
Harbour said: “The award of this funding is
hugely significant. We believe it demonstrates
recognition of this highly strategic project as one
of national and international importance. It also
recognises the Board’s diligence in ensuring all
the requirements of any future application,
in particular the environmental considerations,
are met in their entirety”.

The funding was awarded as part of the European
Commission’s Trans-European Transport
Network (TEN-T) Programme, which is designed
to improve connections across Europe by
creating seamless transport chains for
passengers and freight, whilst encouraging
future technological trends.

He added, “We are particularly pleased that the
Commission considered our application, produced
with the assistance of the Aberdeen-based
TEN-TaNS Project Framework, to be of such
good quality. The Board is committed to seeking

GIVEN ALL OF THIS ACTIVITY,
WHAT ARE THE UPCOMING
POTENTIAL MILESTONES FOR THE
NIGG BAY EXPANSION PLAN?

Specifically, Aberdeen Harbour has been
awarded funds as part of the 2013 Annual
Programme Call which has recognised
54 projects worth €90.7million in total funding.
It covers various modes of transport across
Europe, as well as focusing on the decarbonisation
of transport.

2016: Planning Consent Process, Final Board Approval, Award of Contracts
2017: Potential Construction Start Date
2019: First Quayside Operational
2021: Construction Completed

➟
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STAKEHOLDER SUPPORT
ONE YEAR ON FROM THE LAUNCH OF THE COMMUNITY ACTION
FUND, THE HARBOUR IS PROVIDING FINANCIAL SUPPORT TO A
HOST OF LOCAL CHARITIES AND GOOD CAUSES, WITH TOTAL
FUNDING AMOUNTING TO APPROXIMATELY £120,000 EVERY YEAR.
THE ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD STARTED THE FUND IN 2013 AND
IN ITS FIRST YEAR HAS SUPPORTED A TOTAL OF 18 WORTHWHILE
CAUSES IN ABERDEEN AND FURTHER AFIELD.
Applications for sponsorship can be made via the Aberdeen Harbour Board
website www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

SIMEON CARE HOME

SPORT ABERDEEN

CLAN

GREYHOPE BAY PROJECT

Sponsored furnishings
and access costs for
new care home.

Sponsored recruitment
of Community Walking
Group Co-ordinator.

Sponsored additional
bed nights available at
Clan Haven.

Partial Sponsorship of feasibility
study into creation of Marine
Discovery Centre.

Altens & Cove

Hazlehead Park Run

Sponsored tea dances and
children’s basketball club.

Partially sponsored
startup costs for weekly
5km park run.

Community Centre

RSPB
Partial sponsorship of
Dolphinwatch and Dolphin
Education Programme.

GRAMPIAN AUTISTIC
SOCIETY
Sponsorship of Employment
Support Services.

Support for Construction of Kincorth Skatepark.

SUPPORTED STARTUP COSTS FOR TORRY BIG NOISE.
This Charity set up in the belief that children can gain huge social
benefits by playing in a symphony orchestra. They use music-making
to foster confidence, teamwork, pride and aspiration in the children
taking part – and across their wider community.

Sponsored holiday
play schemes
for children from
disadvantaged
backgrounds
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KINCORTH AND LEGGART COMMUNITY COUNCIL

Big Noise Torry

BEFRIEND A CHILD

Befriend a Child is an
independent, Aberdeenbased charity –
and Scotland’s oldest
befriending service for
disadvantaged and
vulnerable children.

COMMUNITY
ACTION FUND

Seafarers’ Centre
Partial sponsorship of Centre’s core funding. Seafarers’ Centre
provides welfare services, practical advice, care and friendship
to seafarers visiting Aberdeen Harbour.

Hayfield
Equiworld Centre
Sponsorship will allow young
people from Torry to
experience horse riding.

2014/2015
Friends of Duthie Park

QUITE A YEAR
FOR VISITORS

Sponsorship of Rainforest Environmental
Workshops for schoolchildren.
Duthie Park ran tropical rainforest workshops for over
100 schoolchildren from all over Aberdeen. The aim of the
workshops was to increase awareness of the rainforest,
its inhabitants and its importance to the global ecosystem.
Aberdeen Harbour’s sponsorship funded Rainforest
Roadshow to provide the workshops and to train rangers in
presenting the workshop to children in the future.

First Minister and Chief Executive of
Scottish Enterprise visit

Scottish Cabinet Meeting, MOC

ARCHIE FOUNDATION
SHOPMOBILITY
Partial Sponsorship
of this mobility
charity’s core costs.

Sponsorship contributed to refurbishment
of a hospital room each year, for three years.
Aberdeen Harbour also sponsored a ‘Wild Dolphins’
Statue, which was ultimately auctioned off for Archie
Foundation and WDC funds.
Shadow Chancellor and senior Labour Party
elected representatives

Community
Food
Initiatives
North East
Partially sponsored
Fareshare.
Which involves taking
food which would be
discarded by
supermarkets and
supplying food banks.

Inchgarth Community Centre
Sponsored IT classes for pensioners and activities
for pre-school children.

Representatives of the Scottish Government
Infrastructure and Capital Investment
Committee visit the Harbour
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“

“

Our dedicated and professional team at Aberdeen Harbour
ensure the continued high standards of service and facilities
provided to our customers are maintained.

ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD
16 Regent Quay
Aberdeen
AB11 5SS
t: +44 (0)1224 597000
f: +44 (0)1224 571507
e: info@aberdeen-harbour.co.uk
www.aberdeen-harbour.co.uk

Heaven 42 is produced from Totally Chlorine-Free
(TCF) virgin fibre wood pulp from sustainable forest
sources and is FSC Certified in accordance with
the rules of The Forest Stewardship Council.
Front cover photograph: Colin Barclay (Aberdeen
Harbour staff member)
Main photographs: Ray Smith
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STRATEGIC REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
The Board present the strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
Review of the business for the year is included in the signed accounts and can be found in the Chairman’s statement which has been reproduced on page 3 of the
Annual Review.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Board considers that it operates in an area where there will be ongoing demand for its services. The Board has a strong record of investing in modern facilities, plant and
equipment and this together with increased training for our employees will enable us to meet the challenges of the future in offering our port customers a quality cost-effective
service. The Board is currently working at addressing certain business risks regarding capacity constraints by reviewing the future development of the harbour.
The harbour’s business has a wide spread of customers and commodities and is capable of adapting to market changes.
The financial risks are limited to the normal commercial risks associated with running a business. We have no currency exposure.
The Board operates a defined benefit pension scheme and also employs two marine pilots who are members of the Pilot’s National Pension Fund. These arrangements are more
fully explained in Note 16 to the financial statements.
In the harbour’s business, the Board has statutory responsibility for operations in our areas of jurisdiction.
Any significant risk from any of the above risk categories would be debated by the Board and an agreed procedure of handling that risk mitigating as far as practical would be
delegated to the relevant Executive Directors as appropriate.
The Board has compiled a Risk Register which is reviewed in full by the Audit Committee with the highest risks reviewed by the Board on a six-monthly basis.

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE
Financial results
Turnover for the year amounted to £28.94million, an increase of 4.54% compared to 2013. An operating profit of £10.52million was earned in 2014 compared to an operating
profit of £8.38million in 2013, the increase due mainly to phasing difference in the maintenance expenditure and the increased turnover in the current year.
The profit for the year after taxation amounted to £9.28million. As a Trust Port the business retains all profits for reinvestment in harbour developments that will benefit the
harbour’s stakeholders.
Market Value of Land and Buildings
The Board estimates that the market value for land and buildings is in excess of the value shown in the balance sheet but, in accordance with accounting policy, such assets are
not revalued.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:
C Parker
Chief Executive
30 March 2015

34 Aberdeen Harbour Board Annual Review 2014/15

REPORT OF THE BOARD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
The Board presents their report with the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Administration, maintenance and improvement of the harbour is entrusted to Aberdeen Harbour Board, an independent statutory body formed under the terms of the Aberdeen
Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1960. Certain modifications to this constitution were embodied in the Aberdeen Harbour Order Confirmation Act 1987 and the Aberdeen Harbour
Revision (Constitution) Order 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Board are the operation and maintenance of the harbour facilities and the provision of services ancillary thereto.

BOARD MEMBERS
The board members, except as set out below, have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2014 to the date of this report.
Chairman
C P Lloyd

Demitted office 31 December 2014

A Y MacKenzie

Appointed as Chair 1 January 2015

Vice-Chairman
A Y MacKenzie

Demitted as Vice-Chairman 31 December 2014

H D Woodcock

Appointed as Vice-Chairman 1 January 2015

Members
C Bain
J Bell
F A W Bowden
M L Bowyer
M D Laing
M McNeill
G Massie
C Parker
A J Strachan
M A Porter

Appointed 1 January 2015

Principal Officers
C Parker

Chief Executive

C Bain

External Relations Director

J Bell

Finance Director

Captain J R Shaw

Operations Director and Harbour Master

K Young

Engineering Director

COMPANY SECRETARY:
MacKinnons Solicitors

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY:
It is the policy of the Board to pay all verified accounts within agreed settlement terms.

AUDITORS:
The auditors, Johnston Carmichael LLP, will be deemed reappointed under S487 of the Companies Act 2006.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
The Board is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Report of the Board and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Legislation requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Board has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Board must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Board and of the profit or loss of the Board for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:
> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
> make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
> state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
> prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Board will continue in business.
The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Board and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the applicable legislation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
harbour’s assets and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Financial statements comply with the Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981.

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE TO AUDITORS
So far as the members are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 1986) of which the Board’s auditors are unaware, and
each member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a member in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Board’s auditors are aware of that information.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
MacKinnons Solicitors
Secretary
30 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ABERDEEN HARBOUR BOARD
We have audited the financial statements of Aberdeen Harbour Board for the year ended 31 December 2014 set out on pages 38 to 53. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investments and the accounting policies set out therein.
This report is made solely to the members of Aberdeen Harbour Board, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Board’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Board and Board’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Board
As explained more fully in the Statement of responsibilities of the Board on page 36, the Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Board’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Board; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
> give a true and fair view of the state of the Board’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of its profit for the year then ended;
> have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
> have been prepared in accordance with the Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and Report of the Board for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Harbours Act 1964 as amended by the Transport Act 1981 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
> adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
> the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
> certain disclosures of board members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Jean Main (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Johnston Carmichael LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
30 March 2015
Bishop’s Court, 29 Albyn Place, Aberdeen, AB10 1YL
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014
Notes

2013

£’000 		£’000

TURNOVER

2

28,940

27,682

Cost of sales

3

(12,247)

(13,743)

GROSS PROFIT		
16,693
13,939
Administrative expenses		

(6,172)

(5,563)

OPERATING PROFIT

4

10,521		

8,376

Other interest receivable and similar income

5

1,085

972

Interest payable and similar charges

6

–

(1)

16

796		

Other finance income

279

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION		 12,402

9,626

7

(3,123)

(2,603)

17

9,279

7,023

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

		
The profit and loss account has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014

2013

		
£’000 		£’000

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR		
9,279

7,023

Actuarial (loss)/gains on pension scheme		

(3,925)

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension liability		

784

(33)

Unrealised gain on investments		

609		

669

Deferred tax movement associated with above gain		

(53)

56

6,694

8,050

TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES RELATING TO THE YEAR		
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
2014
Notes		

£’000

2013
£’000

£’000

£’000

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets

8				

107,855 			

111,503

Investments

9				

34,727 			

33,126

				

142,582 			

144,629

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks

10		

58 			

72

Debtors

11		

5,759 			

4,923

Cash at bank and in hand		

12,095				

1,141

			

17,912 			

6,136

(5,148)			

(5,073)			

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year

12		

NET CURRENT ASSETS					

12,764 			

1,063

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES				

155,346 			

145,692

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more than one year

13				

(2,300)			

(2,429)

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

14				

(632)			

(466)

ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME

15				

(15)			

(20)

				

152,399 			

142,777

16				

(1,886)			

1,042

					

150,513 			

143,819

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

RESERVES
Revaluation reserve

17				

4,430 			

3,874

Profit and loss account

17				

146,083 			

139,945

18				

150,513				

143,819

		
Approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 30 March 2015
C Parker Chief Executive
A Y MacKenzie Chairman
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
2014
			

£’000

Net cash inflow from operating activities				

2013
£’000

£’000

16,056 			

£’000
15,927

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received			

74 			

24

Interest paid			

– 			

(63)

Net cash inflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance					

74				

(39)

Taxation				

(2,917)			

(5,417)

Capital expenditure
Payments to acquire tangible assets			

(2,259)			

(13,170)

Receipts from sales of tangible assets			

– 			

260

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure					

(2,259)			

(12,910)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before management of liquid resources and financing				

10,954 			

(2,439)

Management of liquid resources
Current asset investments			

(10,944)			

2,388

					

(10,944)			

2,388

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year					

10 			

(51)
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NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

						

2014		

2013

			

£’000		

£’000

		

1 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Operating profit
Depreciation of tangible assets
Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Capital grant release

10,521		

8,376

3,931		

3,717

292

–

(5)

(5)

14

(7)

Decrease in debtors

133

803

Increase in creditors within one year

640

2,632

Pension scheme non-cash movement

530

411

Decrease/(increase) in stocks

16,056		

Net cash inflow from operating activities

2 ANALYSIS OF NET FUNDS/(DEBT)

15,927

1 January		
Cash flow		
Other non-		 31 December
2014				 cash changes		
2014		
£000		

£000		

£000		

£000

Cash at bank and in hand

1,141		

10,954		

–

12,095

Less: Deposits treated as liquid assets

(1,116)

(10,944)

–

(12,060)

25		

10		

1,116		

10,944		

–

12,060

1,116		

10,944		

–

12,060

1,141		

10,954		

–

12,095

Net cash:

Deposits included in cash

Net funds

3 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS

–		

35

2014		

2013

£000

£000

10

(51)

Cash outflow/(inflow) from increase/(decrease) in liquid resources

10,944		

(2,388)

Movement in net funds in the year

						
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year

10,954

(2,439)

Opening net funds

1,141

3,580

Closing net funds

12,095		

1,141
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain assets and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.
Turnover
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received in respect of services provided in the normal course of business stated net of Value Added Tax. Rents
receivable are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are initially stated at cost.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on the asset costs using asset lives consistent with past practice, subject to a maximum quay life of 40 years. Plant is
depreciated on the basis of an economic life of three to 20 years depending on the nature of the asset. Dredgings are depreciated over a 40-year period. Buildings are
depreciated over the periods of between 20 and 50 years. Land is not depreciated.
Included in Capital Works in Progress are costs of £2.5million in relation to the Nigg Bay Development project. The costs incurred to the balance sheet date are in relation to the
initial assessment and feasibility of the Nigg Bay Development project. As at the balance sheet date, the Board are committed to progressing the feasibility study however a
final decision on the project has not been made. If this project does not proceed these costs will be written off to the profit and loss account.
Leasing
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at market value.
Stock
Stocks are valued at the lower of invoice cost on an average cost basis and estimated net realisable value. Provision is made for obsolescence.
Finance lease receivables
Interest from finance leasing contracts, being the excess amounts received over the cost in finance leasing contracts, is taken to profit reducing capital invested throughout the
period of the contract.
Amounts receivable under finance leases are included under other debtors.
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates
expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law. Timing differences arise from inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations
in periods different from those in which they are included in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not
they will be recovered. Deferred tax is provided on timing differences arising from the revaluation of fixed assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Capital Investment Grants
Capital investment grants are credited to Profit and Loss Account over the expected useful lives of the relevant fixed assets.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)
Retirement benefits
The Board operates two defined benefit pension schemes.
> For the main scheme, in accordance with FRS17, the service cost of pension provision relating to the year, together with the cost of any benefits relating to past service, is
charged to operating profit. A charge equal to interest on the scheme liabilities and a credit equivalent to the long-term expected return on assets are included in the profit
and loss account under ‘Interest Receivable and Similar Income’. The difference between the market value of the scheme and the present value of the accrued pension
liabilities is shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet net of deferred tax. Any difference between the expected return on assets and that actually achieved is
recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses along with differences which arise from other experience or assumption changes.
> The Pilots’ National Pension Fund is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution as the Board’s share of assets and liabilities cannot be identified. In the prior year the
Board’s share of the funding deficit was accrued (refer to Note 4).
The Board also operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the Board’s pension scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the period
to which they relate. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

2 TURNOVER
2014		

2013

£’000		

£’000

Class of business
Dues: on Ships
Dues: on Goods
Cranage and weighbridge

11,254

10,643

7,150		

7,031

265		

282

493		

438

Rent

6,593		

6,478

Pilotage

3,027		

2,675

Storage

Other Revenue

158

135

28,940

27,682

2014		

2013

£’000		

£’000

8,500

10,144

3 COST OF SALES

Operating and maintenance
Dredging
Major maintenance
Depreciation (net of grants)

518		

447

740

748

2,489

2,404

12,247

13,743
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
4 OPERATING PROFIT
2014		

2013

£’000		

£’000

Operating profit is stated after charging:
Direct costs of pilotage

1,977

4,561

Depreciation of tangible assets

3,931

3,717

741

748

Major maintenance:
Torry Quay refurbishment – repair element
Loss on disposal of tangible assets

292

Operating lease rentals

350		

310

117		

68

Hire of plant and machinery

–

19		

17			

Other services

8

–

Capital investment grants

5		

5

Auditors’ remuneration:

Audit

and after crediting:

An amount of £2,531,919 is included in the Direct costs of pilotage for 2013, being the Board’s share of the funding deficit of the Pilots’ National Pension Fund.

5 INVESTMENT INCOME
2014		

2013

£’000		

£’000

Interest received on short-term deposits (gross)

20

10

Interest received from customer

54		

13

1,011		

949

1,085

972

Dividends receivable (net)

6 INTEREST PAYABLE

On overdue tax
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2014		

2013

£’000		

£’000

–

1

7 TAXATION
2014		

2013

£’000		

£’000

2,956		

3,165

Domestic current-year tax
UK corporation tax

–

Adjustment for prior years

(4)

2,956		

3,161		

Accelerated capital allowances

95		

(26)

Timing differences on pension costs

53

(26)

Pension contributions unpaid at the year end

19		

(506)

167		

(558)

3,123		

2,603

12,402		

9,626		

2,666

2,238		

Total current tax
Deferred tax

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by standard rate of UK corporation tax of 21.50% (2013 : 23.25%)
Effects of:
10

9

Non-qualifying depreciation

677

620

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation

(102)

(99)

(77)

619

Items not deductible for tax purposes

Timing differences
Adjustments to previous periods
Dividends already taxed
Income not taxable – fixed assets

Current tax charge for the year

–

(4)

(217)

(221)

(1)

(1)

290

923		

2,956

3,161
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
8 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
							
Docks,
							 Structures,
Land and						 Roads and				
Buildings				
Plant and		 Permanent		
Floating		
Freehold		
Dredging		 Machinery		
Way		
Craft		

Capital
Works in
Progress		

Total

£’000		

£’000

£’000		

£’000		

£’000

£’000		

£’000		

62,724		

9,767		

9,057		

91,214		

2,406		

2,054		

177,222

109		

–		

112		

32		

–		

1,271		

1,524

COST
At 1 January 2014
Additions
Transfer

–		

–		

151		

599		

–		

(750)

–

(332)

–		

–		

(991)

–		

–		

(1,323)

62,501		

9,767		

9,320		

90,854		

2,406		

2,575		

177,423

18,776		

1,848		

6,517		

37,628		

950		

–		

65,719

(40)

–		

–		

(42)

–		

–		

(82)

1,350		

214		

428		

1,779		

160		

–		

3,931

20,086		

2,062		

6,945		

39,365		

1,110		

–		

69,568

At 31 December 2014

42,415		

7,705		

2,375		

51,489		

1,296		

2,575		

107,855

At 31 December 2013

43,948		

7,919		

2,540		

53,586		

1,456		

2,054		

111,503

Disposals
At 31 December 2014

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2014
On disposals
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2014

NET BOOK VALUE

Included in cost of land and buildings is freehold land of £13,222,959 (2013 : £13,193,544) which is not depreciated.
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9 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Quoted
Unit Trusts
£000
At Market Value
At 1 January 2014

33,126

Additions

992

Revaluation

609

At 31 December 2014

34,727

Net book value
At 31 December 2014

34,727

At 31 December 2013

33,126
£000

At cost
At 31 December 2014 (includes dividends reinvested)

30,123

At 31 December 2013 (includes dividends reinvested)

29,131

UNLISTED INVESTMENTS
Aberdeen Harbour Board own 100% of the issued share capital of Aberdeen Harbour Limited, a company incorporated in Scotland. Aberdeen Harbour Limited is engaged in the
business of renting out property.
The results of Aberdeen Harbour Limited are not material and therefore group financial statements have not been prepared.
At 31 December 2014, Aberdeen Harbour Board owed Aberdeen Harbour Limited £4,987 (2013 : £3,763).
The Board charged Aberdeen Harbour Limited £380,007 (2013 : £332,614) for rent and £2,000 in respect of management charges (2013 : £2,000).

10 STOCKS
2014

2013

£’000

£’000

58

72

2014

2013

£’000

£’000

Trade debtors

3,572

3,706

Other debtors

1,887

595

300

622

5,759

4,923

309

299

Stocks

11 DEBTORS

Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts falling due after more than one year and included in the debtors above are:
Other debtors
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
12 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Rent payments received on account

2014

2013

£’000

£’000

1,243

1,344

Trade creditors

528

496

Corporation tax

1,569

1,528

Other taxes and social security costs
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

146

141

1,152

637

510

927

5,148

5,073

2014

2013

£’000

£’000

2,300

2,429

13 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Other creditors

14 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liability

		
£’000
Balance at 1 January 2014		

466

Profit and loss account		

113

Revaluation reserve		

53

Balance at 31 December 2014		

632

The deferred tax liability is made up as follows:

2014

2013

£’000

£’000

Accelerated capital allowances

946

851

Pension contributions unpaid at the year end

(488)

(506)

Unrealised gain on investments

174

121

632

466

15 ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
			
Government Grants

		
£’000
Balance at 1 January 2014		

20

Amortisation in the year		

(5)

Balance at 31 December 2014		

15
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16 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Board operates a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, which was closed to new members on 31 October 2013. The assets of the Scheme are
held separately from those of the Board, being invested with fund managers. Contributions to the Scheme are charged to the Profit and Loss Account so as to spread the cost
of pensions over employees’ working lives with the Board. The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of valuations carried out every three years.
The most recent triennial valuation was at 31 March 2014. The 2014 valuation is not yet signed off although it has been agreed. The market value of the Scheme’s assets was
£58.6million and the actuarial value of those assets represented 106% of the benefits that had accrued to members after allowing for the expected future increase in earnings.
Amounts, based on the average working lives of employees, have been charged to the Profit and Loss Account in respect of adjustments to the Scheme’s Funding Plan requirements.
Two of the Board’s current employees are members of the Pilots’ National Pension Fund (PNPF). The PNPF is unusual in that the membership of the scheme includes both
employed and self-employed members. The last triennial valuation of the fund was at 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013 the valuation of that fund’s assets totalled
£270.6million, which represented 57% of the liabilities resulting in a funding deficit of £203million. The trustees of the PNPF have amended the Trust Deed and Rules so that all
Competent Harbour Authorities (pilot licensing authorities) whether direct employees or not would have joint and several responsibilities to meet any funding deficit.
The Board’s share of the funding deficit based on the trustee’s most recent valuation advice has been estimated at £2.53million which the trustee has indicated will be payable
by monthly instalments over a 16-year period commencing on 1 January 2013. This obligation, based on currently available information, has been reflected in the financial
statements and £138,348 is included in Other creditors falling due within one year and £2,299,723 is included in Other creditors falling due after more than one year.
In accordance with FRS17, normal transactions with the PNPF are accounted for as if the fund were a defined contribution scheme. During the year employer contributions paid
to the PNPF amounted to £27,245 (2013 : £18,230). These have been included in Cost of services in the Profit and Loss Account. The funding deficit was accrued in 2013 as per
Note 4.
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans
2014

2013

£’000

£’000

Present value of funded obligations

(64,491)

(57,332)

Fair value of plan assets

62,134

58,634

(Deficit)/surplus

(2,357)

1,302

471		

(260)

(1,886)

1,042

Deferred tax asset/(liability)
Net (liability)/asset
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
16 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (cont)
The amounts recognised in the profit and loss are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans
2014

2013

£’000

£’000

1,480		

1,479

1,480		

1,479

Interest on obligation

2,568

2,292

Expected return on pension scheme assets

(3,364)

(2,571)

(796)

(279)

684

1,200

4,549

7,131

Included in operating profit
Current service cost

Included in other finance income

Total
Actual return on plan assets
Analysis of amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets

1,185

4,560

Actuarial loss on pension scheme net liabilities

(5,110)

(4,225)

(3,925)

335

57,332

51,069

Current service cost

1,480

1,479

Interest cost

2,568

2,292

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation

188

212

Benefits paid

(2,187)

(1,945)

Other movements

5,110

4,225

64,491

57,332

58,634

52,168

Contributions from scheme participants

Total
Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets
Expected return

3,364		

2,571

Actuarial gains

1,185

4,560

950

1,068

Contributions by employer
Contributions from scheme participants
Benefits paid

The Board expects to contribute £1,095,000 to its pension scheme in 2015.
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188		

212

(2,187)

(1,945)

62,134

58,634

16 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (cont)
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:

2014

2013

%

%

Equities

25

73

Bonds

23		

8

Gilts

32		

17

Diversified Growth Fund

19		

–

1

2

100

100

Discount rate at 31 December

3.60

4.50

Rate of salary increase

3.85

4.15

Rate of increase of pensions in payment

3.10

3.40

Rate of inflation

2.10

3.40

Rate of statutory revaluation of pensions in deferment

2.10

2.70

Cash/Other

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

To develop the long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Board considered the current level of expected returns on risk-free investments (primarily government bonds),
the historical level of risk premium associated with the other assets classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class. The
expected return for each class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio.
This resulted in the selection of the 5.79% assumption for the year ended 31 December 2014 and a 4.03% assumption which will be used to calculate the P&L items for the year
ending 31 December 2015.
Weighted average assumptions used to determine net pension cost for the year ended:
Discount rate

4.50		

4.50

Expected long-term return on scheme assets

5.79		

4.96

Weighted average life expectancy for mortality tables used to determine benefit obligations at:
Retired male member age 65 (current life expectancy)

22.60

23.50

Retired female member age 65 (current life expectancy)

25.00

25.80

Non-retired male member age 45 (life expectancy at age 65)

24.80

25.80

Non-retired female member age 45 (life expectancy at age 65)

27.40

28.20

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:
Defined benefit pension plans

2014		

2013		

2012		

2011		

2010

£’000		

£’000		

£’000		

£’000		

£’000

(51,069)

(47,954)

(44,108)

Defined benefit obligation

(64,491)

(57,332)

Plan assets

62,134

58,634		52,168		47,971		48,303

(Deficit)/surplus

(2,357)

1,302		

1,099		

17		

4,195

(912)

–		

–		

917		

(147)

1,192

4,560		

2,262		

(3,294)

2,219

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities
Experience adjustments on plan assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
17 STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS ON RESERVES
Revaluation
Profit and
reserve loss account
£’000
Balance at 1 January 2014
Profit for the year

£’000

3,874		

139,945

–		

9,279

Revaluation gain on investments

609		

–

Movement in deferred tax in relation to above

(53)

–

Actuarial gains or losses on pension scheme assets

–		

(3,925)

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset

–		

784

4,430		

146,083

Balance at 31 December 2014

18 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES		
2014
2013
£’000

£’000

Profit for the financial year

9,279		

7,023

Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year (net)

(2,585)

1,027

Net addition

6,694

8,050

Opening reserves

143,819		

135,769

Closing reserves

150,513		

143,819

			

19 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2014 the Board had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases of £325,200 in respect of land and buildings (2013 : £310,000).
The expiry period is after five years.

20 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2014

2013

£’000

£’000

–

702

At 31 December 2014 the company had capital commitments as follows:
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements
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21 BOARD MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION
2014

2013

£’000

£’000

621		

Remuneration for qualifying services

502

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined benefit schemes amounted to two (2013 : three). Amount accrued in respect of the highest-paid
Board member at 31 December 2014 was £112,080 (2013 : £111,247).
Remuneration disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the highest-paid director:
219		

Remuneration for qualifying services

167

22 EMPLOYEES			
Number of employees
The average monthly number of employees (including directors) during the year was:

2014

2013

Number

Number

3		

3

Administrative and Managerial

23		

25

Operating and Maintenance

67		

65

93		

93

Executive Board Member

Employment costs

Wages and salaries

2014

2013

£’000

£’000

4,980

4,866

Social security costs

492

469

Other pension costs

1,603

1,503

–

2,533

Pension costs – additional contributions for funding deficit

7,075		

9,371

23 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with the subsidiary undertaking, Aberdeen Harbour Limited are disclosed in Note 9.
During the year, services of £145,299 (2013 : £25,704) were purchased from Scribe Management Services Limited, a company controlled by I Jessiman, a member of senior
management during the year. The balance payable to Scribe Management Services Limited at 31 December 2014 was £nil (2013 : £25,704).
During the year, services of £31,500 (2013 : £nil) were purchased from E K Reilly, a member of senior management during part of the year. The balance payable to E K Reilly at
31 December 2014 was £2,580 (2013 : £nil).
During the year, the Board made net advances of £120,000 (2013 : £nil) to the Aberdeen Harbour Board Retirement Benefit Scheme, the Board’s defined-benefit pension scheme.
The balance receivable from the Aberdeen Harbour Board Retirement Benefit Scheme at 31 December 2014 was £120,000 (2013 : £nil).
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DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014
£000		

2013
£000		

£000		

£000

Dues on vessels		

11,254 			

10,643

Dues on goods			

7,150				

7,031

Turnover

Rent			

6,593 			

6,478

Pilotage			

3,027 			

2,675

Storage			

493 			

438

Cranage and weighbridge			

265				

282

Other revenue			

158 			

135

		
28,940 			
27,682
Cost of sales
Dredging costs

518 			

447

Major maintenance

740 			

748

Operating and maintenance

8,500 			

10,144

Depreciation on fixed assets

2,489 			

2,404

		
(12,247)			
(13,743)
Gross profit

57.68%

16,693

50.35%		

13,939

Administrative expenses			

(6,172)			

(5,563)

Operating profit			

10,521 			

8,376

Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest received from customer
Interest receivable from short-term deposits (gross)
Dividends receivable (net)

54 			

13

20 			

10

1,011 			

949

1,085				

972

Interest on overdue taxation – paid			

–				

(1)

Other finance income			

796 			

279

Profit before taxation			

12,402 			

9,626

			
Interest payable
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SHIPPING AND TRAFFIC STATISTICS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

		
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
Number of vessels
European Union		

1,922

1,670

1,741

1,775

1,629

Foreign (excl.EU)		

324

297

267

267

254

Offshore Oil		

5,601

5,687

5,861

5,421

5,122

Fishing		
83
167
264
312
456
Cruise		
7
13
9
9
6
		
7,937
7,834
8,142
7,784
7,467
Tonnage of Vessels (Thousand Gross Tonnes)
European Union		

7,629

8,103

8,091

8,177

7,516

Foreign (excl.EU)		

1,758

1,710

1,439

1,260

1,150

Offshore Oil		

18,675

18,226

18,591

16,404

15,496

Fishing		
10
24
23
20
32
Cruise		
34
61
44
50
34
28,106

28,124

28,188

25,911

24,228

1,588

1,705

1,708

1,660

1,647

548

541

582

500

501

Traffic Statistics (Thousand Tonnes)
Goods Inwards
Commercial Traffic		
Offshore Oil Traffic

		
2,136
2,246
2,290
2,160
2,148
Goods Outwards
Commercial Traffic		

753

700

723

660

555

Offshore Oil Traffic		

1,858

1,936

2,126

1,944

1,953

		
2,611
2,635
2,849
2,604
2,508
Total Goods Inwards and Outwards		
4,747
4,882
5,139

4,764

4,656

Number of Passengers		
153,756
155,490
145,105
150,735

149,65
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